

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

REPORT

OF

THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

ON

THE FINANCIAL OPERATIONS OF COUNTY ASSEMBLY OF EMBU

FOR THE PERIOD
I JULY 2014 TO 30 JUNE 2015

Table of Contents

Intro	oduction	, 1
Aud	lit Objectives	, 1
Teri	ms of Reference	,1
Key	Audit Findings	, 1
1.	Budgetary Control and Performance	, 1
2.	Payables/Pending Bills	. 2
3.	Mortgage and Car Loan Fund	. 2
4.	Unsupported Expenditures	. 2
4 .1.	Arusha and Mombasa Trips	. 2
5.	Construction of Office Complex and Specialized Works	. 3
6.	Late Payment of Statutory Deductions	. 4
7.	Un Analysed Legal Fees.	. 4
8.	Recruitment of Ward Staff	. 4
8.1.	Application Letters	. 4
8.2.	Non Provision of Recruitment Records	. 4
9.	Incomplete Fixed Assets Register	. 5
10.	IT Environment	, 5
11.	Unsupported Ward Operations Expenses	. 5
DET	TAILED AUDIT FINDINGS	. 6
1.0.	Budgetary Control and Performance	. 6
1.1.	Receipts	. 6
1.2.	Expenditure	. 6
2.	Payables/Pending Bills	, 7
3.	Mortgage and Car Loan Fund	. 7
4.	Unsupported Expenditures	. 8
4.1.	Arusha and Mombasa Trips	. 8
4.2.	Other Domestic Travel expenses	. 9
5.	Construction of Office Complex and Specialized Works	. 9
6.	Late Payment of Statutory Deductions	
7.	Un Analyzed Legal Fees	
8.	Recruitment of Ward Staff	
8.1.	Application Letters	12
8.2.	Non Provision of Recruitment Records	12

9.	Incomplete Fixed Assets Register	12
10.	IT Environment	,13
11.	Unsupported Ward Operations Expenditure	13
Cor	nclusion	14

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON THE FINANCIAL OPERATIONS OF COUNTY ASSEMBLY OF EMBU FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2014 TO 30 JUNE 2015

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

The Office of the Auditor-General has the mandate to audit and report on the accounts of the National and County Governments under Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Public Audit Act, 2003. The financial operation Audit has been completed in accordance with section 229 of the Constitution of Kenya.

Audit Objectives

The objective of the audit was to verify and confirm whether the systems formulated and applied by the Embu County Assembly were reliable for the management of the finances in the delivery of service to the people of Embu County.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference set for audit included verification and confirmation of transactions in respect to but not limited to the following areas:

- Budgetary Performance Analysis
- Revenue Management Controls
- Staff Remuneration / Salaries and Wages
- Procurement of goods, works and services
- Cash and Bank Balances
- Non Current Assets
- Mortgage and Car Loans
- Training Costs, Consultancy and Legal fees etc.
- MCAs Travel (Both Local and Foreign Trips)
- Commitments (Pending Bills)
- Confidential Expenditure
- Imprests and advances
- Inherited Debts / Liabilities
- Human Resource
- Review of Controller of Budget Report and Audit Mitigations
- Review of IFMIS and e-Procurement
- Review of Fy2013/2014 Audit Issues

Key Audit Findings

1. Budgetary Control and Performance

During the year under review, the Approved Budget for Embu County Assembly was Kshs.451,833,247.00, in which Kshs.416,833,247.00 (92%) was allocated to recurrent expenditure and Kshs.35,000,000.00 (08%) to development expenditure. The Assembly received Kshs.416,406,271.00 from the National Government as transfers from the

County Treasury for recurrent expenditure. The Assembly did not receive a total amount for development expenditure of Kshs.35,000,000.00.

No explanation was given for the failure to receive Kshs.35,000,000.00 from County Treasury.

2. Payables/Pending Bills

Pending bills totalling Kshs.30,175,004.00 were outstanding as at 30 June 2015. However, pending bills' register provided for audit verification lacked important details like invoice numbers, amounts and dates

Further, the County Assembly management incurred the expenditure without confirming availability of funds for such expenses contrary to Section 149 (1) and (2) of Public Finance Management Act 2012 and Government Financial Regulations and Procedures Section 5.5.15.

3. Mortgage and Car Loan Fund

Examination of the Assembly records revealed that Kshs.59,000,000.00 was transferred to Family Bank for mortgage and car loan funds account number 075000028013. However, cash books, payment vouchers, mortgage management committee minutes, approved loan applications, bank reconciliation statements and bank statements from 17 June 2015 to 30 June 2015 (for mortgage and car loan funds account number 075000028013) and bank statement for mortgage and car loan funds (held under lien) account number 075000028013 were not provided for audit review. Also the quarterly financial statements on MCAs Car Loan and Mortgage Fund were not availed for audit as required under Section 167 and 168 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Under the circumstances, it was not possible to determine how the fund was being managed.

Further, although Kshs.147,089,640.00 had been loaned to the Members of the County Assembly (MCAs) in respect to car and mortgage loans as at 30 June 2015, no valuation reports were made available for audit verification. In the circumstances, it was not possible to determine the criteria used to advance a loan to each MCA.

In addition, copies of the design of the proposed mortgage properties duly approved by the County Government, bills of quantities for the proposed properties, official search of the properties and certified sale agreements or ownership documents were not made available for audit. There was also no evidence of charging of the properties acquired through loans from the fund. Consequently, it was not possible to confirm that the loan was applied for the intended purposes.

4. Unsupported Expenditures

4.1. Arusha and Mombasa Trips

During the year under review, the County Assembly paid Kshs.1,927,190.00 to a Travel Company for the above two trips. The Assembly paid Kshs.961,190.00 for the trip to Mombasa. However, the supporting documents only accounted for Kshs. 589,000.00

hence leaving a balance of Kshs.372,190.00 unsupported. Further, Kshs.246,000.00 and Kshs.60,800.00 were paid in respect to the reservation change for the Arusha and Mombasa trips respectively. However, communication on the change in reservations was not made available for verification. In the circumstances, the Assembly incurred wasteful expenditure of Kshs.306,800.00 due to change of reservations.

In view of the foregoing, the propriety of the expenditure of Kshs.1,927,190.00 could not be confirmed.

4.2. Other Domestic Travel expenses

Records examined revealed that Kshs.11,040,179.00 was paid as per diem and honoraria to MCAs and members of staff committees, while attending various official activities. However, there was no justification for holding conferences and retreats were outside the county yet the Assembly had prequalified local hospitality service providers for the period ended 30 June 2015.

Further, the County Assembly paid Kshs.1,276,000.00 vide payment voucher number CAE/AUG14/088 which included transport allowance of Kshs.108,000.00. The payment was not supported and the basis for paying the transport allowance was not explained.

5. Construction of Office Complex and Specialized Works

The County Assembly entered into an agreement for construction of an office complex and specialized works on 30 March 2015 with a contractor at a contract sum of Kshs.325,856,107.00 vide tender committee meeting minute number CATC/040/2014-2015 of 5 March 2015. An internal memo ref. CAE/GEN/5/VOL.V/19 of 7 January 2015 revealed that the project was to be financed through development budget as follows:

Year	Amount (Kshs)
2014/2015	35,000,000.00
2015/2016	200,000,000.00
2016/2017	100,000,000.00
Total	335,000,000.00

However, the Commission on Revenue Allocation (CRA) vide a circular no. 5/2015 of 19 May 2015, advised that construction of new county assemblies were part of non-core capital projects that were not a priority in the first five (5) years of devolution and should not be financed through equitable allocation. It also advised that in case such projects are justified, they should be funded using long term finance of between 5 to 10 years in consultation with CRA and the National Treasury. As at 30 June 2015, Kshs.106,134.00 had been paid to NEMA in respect to the project.

However, the County Assembly has not determined how to raise the funds for completing the project since, in the absence of more funds, and with a valid contract in force, the Assembly might face penalties and claims for breach of contract.

The progress of the project was further impeded by legal processes and the Assembly had no clear financing plan for the construction of the office complex.

6. Late Payment of Statutory Deductions

During the year under review, the County Assembly was billed by Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA) Kshs.13,242,687.22 made up of Kshs.8,275,989.50, Kshs.3,990,590.92 and 976.106.81 for unremitted taxes, penalties and interest respectively.

No explanation was provided as to why the County Assembly failed to remit all taxes to KRA as required by Income Tax Act occasioning the penalties and interest of Kshs.4,966,697.73 as at 30 June 2015.

7. Un Analysed Legal Fees

During the year under review, the County Assembly paid one law firm a total sum of Kshs.7,500,000.00 through various cheques in the month of October 2015. In all the fee notes, the amount was charged as a block figure. Though there was an indication that the legal fees was charged as under Schedule V (II) (1) (2) & (3) of the Advocates (Remuneration) Order, 2006, the breakdown in terms of court attendances expenses or the basis for the fee notes was not provided.

In view of the foregoing, the propriety of the legal fees expenditure of Kshs.7,500,000 could not be confirmed as at June 2015.

8. Recruitment of Ward Staff

The Assembly employed seventy three (73) ward employees on contractual basis during the year under review. However, the following anomalies were noted;

8.1. Application Letters

The Assembly advertisement for staff recruitment indicated that the application letters be addressed to the Clerk of Embu County Assembly and submitted not later than 15 December 2014. However, some of the application letters revealed that they were submitted long after the deadline and were addressed to the MCAs instead of the clerk to the Assembly. Therefore, it was not clear how individuals who applied long after the deadline were shortlisted, interviewed, selected and why the letters were addressed to the MCAs instead of the Clerk to the County Assembly as per the advertisement.

8.2. Non Provision of Recruitment Records

The Assembly did not avail to the audit team, application letters, minutes of short listing, list of shortlisted applicants, interview records, scores of people interviewed and the minutes showing the basis/reason for selecting the employees.

In the circumstances, it was not possible to determine if the recruitment was competitive as required by Section 24. (1) of the Public Service Commission's Regulations, 2012 and Section E.6 and E.7 (1) of the Code of Regulations.

4

9. Incomplete Fixed Assets Register

The County Assembly did not maintain a complete fixed assets register during the period under review. The register made available for audit review did not have details such as asset's description, location, date of purchase or valuation, name of supplier, mode of financing, serial number, condition of the asset, date of disposal, disposal amount and other relevant information pertaining to the assets.

Even though, the Assembly has embarked on the process of tagging her assets, no explanation was given for failure to maintain an up to date fixed assets register.

10. IT Environment

During the year under review, the financial operations of the County Assembly was undertaken through manual vote books and cash books as the Integrated Financial Management Information System (IFMIS) had not been adopted. This was contrary to Clause 8 (2) of the County Government Public Finance Management Act, 2013 which required the adoption of IFMIS. The explanation given for failure to adopt IFMIS in the operations of the County Assembly was not sufficient because all entities were to implement IFMIS as per PFM Act, 2012 and County Government Public Finance Management Act, 2013.

11. Unsupported Ward Operations Expenses

During the financial year under review, the Assembly paid Kshs.5,559,686.00 as reimbursements of standing imprest toward ward operations. However, cash books with details of all receipts, expenditure and cash balance on hand as required by Section 5.6.9 of the Government Financial Regulations and Procedures was not provided for audit review.

FCPA Edward R. O. Ouko, CBS AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

29 August 2016

DETAILED AUDIT REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL OPERATIONS OF COUNTY ASSEMBLY OF EMBU FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2014 TO 30 JUNE 2015

DETAILED AUDIT FINDINGS

1.0. Budgetary Control and Performance

1.1. Receipts

During the year under review, the Approved Budget for Embu County Assembly was Kshs.451,833,247, with Kshs.416,833,247 (92%) allocated to recurrent expenditure and Kshs.35,000,000 (8%) to development expenditure. The Assembly received Kshs. 416,406,271 from the National Government as transfers from the County Treasury for recurrent expenditure. However, Assembly did not receive the Kshs. 35,000,000 budgeted for development. The total revenue shortfall amounted to Kshs.35,426,976 as shown below:

Item	Budget Kshs.	Actual Kshs.	Variance Kshs.	Performance Rate
Exchequer – Development	35,000,000	0.00	35,000,000	0%
Exchequer – Recurrent	416,833,247	384,620,628	67,212,619	85.12%
Other receipts (paid by county treasury on behalf of Assembly)		31,785,643	(31,785,643)	
Total	451,833,247	416,406,271	35,426,976	85.12%

1.2. Expenditure

The Assembly had budgeted to spend Kshs.451,833,247 on both recurrent and development expenditures but the actual expenditure was Kshs.415,752,369 resulting to an under – expenditure of Kshs.60,009,315 and an over – expenditure of Kshs.23,928,437 (Appendix I) on four items namely; Compensation of employees, domestic travel, foreign travel and training expenses.

Recommendations

- (i) The County Assembly should ensure it spends the amounts and deliver services to the County residents
- (ii) The Assembly should ensure that it contains its operations within the approved budget.

2. Payables/Pending Bills

Pending bills totalling Kshs.30,175,004.00 were outstanding as at 30 June 2015. However, a pending bills register provided for audit verification lacked important details like invoices numbers, amounts and dates. Further, it was not clear why the County Assembly management incurred the expenditure without confirming availability of funds for such expenditures Contrary to Section 149 (1) and (2) of the Public Finance Management Act 2012 and Government financial regulations and Procedures Section 5.5.15

Recommendations

- (i) The Embu County Assembly management should provide documentary evidence to confirm the accuracy and existence of the pending bills otherwise payments should not be effected.
- (ii) The management of the Assembly should explain why the Assembly incurred expenditure without confirming the availability of funds.

3. Mortgage and Car Loan Fund

Examination of the cash book and payment vouchers indicate that Kshs. 59,000,000.00 was transferred to Family Bank for mortgage and car loan funds account number 075000028013. However, cash books, payment vouchers, mortgage management committee minutes, approved loan applications, bank reconciliation statement and bank statements from 17 to 30 June 2015 and bank statement for mortgage and car loan funds (held under lien) account number 075000028013 were not provided for audit review. The County Assembly management did not also avail for audit purposes the quarterly financial statements on MCAs Car Loan and Mortgage Fund as required under Section 167 and 168 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

In the circumstances, it was not possible to determine how the fund was being managed.

Further, although Kshs.147,089,640.00 (**Appendix II**) had been loaned to the MCAs in respect to car and mortgage loans as at 30 June 2015, no valuation reports were made available for audit verification. In the circumstances, it was not possible to determine the criteria used in determining how much loan each MCA was to get.

In addition, copies of the design of the proposed mortgage properties duly approved by the County Government, bills of quantities for the proposed properties, official search of the properties and certified sale agreements or ownership documents were not made available for audit review.

There was also no evidence of charging of the properties acquired through loans from the fund. Consequently, it was not possible to confirm whether the loan was applied for the intended purposes.

Recommendations

The Embu County Assembly management should ensure cash books, payment vouchers, loan applications, evidence of charge against the properties, bank reconciliation statements including any other related records are availed for audit review. The management of the Assembly should also ensure recovery of the funds disbursed and secure the loans till fully recovered.

4. Unsupported Expenditures

4.1. Arusha and Mombasa Trips

During the year under review, the County Assembly paid Kshs.1,927,190.00 to a travel company for two trips as analysed below:-

P.V. NO. ANI DATE	PAYEE	PARTICULARS	AMOUNT KSHS
CAE/AUG14/093 o 3/9/2014	f Travel Company	Booking fee for return air tickets from Nairobi to Arusha for nine (9) persons – Kshs.720,000.00 Change of reservations for nine (9) persons – Kshs. 246,000.00	966,000.00
CAE/AUG14/094 o 3/9/2014	f Travel Company	Booking fee for return air tickets from Nairobi to Mombasa for nineteen (19) persons – Kshs.528,200.00 Change of reservations for nineteen (19) persons – Kshs.60,800.00	961,190.00
Total			1,927,190

The following anomalies were noted:

- (i) The Assembly paid Kshs.961,190.00 for the trip to Mombasa. However, the supporting documents only accounted for Kshs.589,000.00 hence leaving unsupported balance of Kshs.372,190.00.
- (ii) Further, Kshs.246,000.00 and Kshs.60,800.00 was paid in respect to reservation change for the Arusha and Mombasa trips respectively. However, the communication on the change in reservations was not made available for audit verification. In the circumstances, the Assembly incurred wasteful expenditure of Kshs.306,800.00 due to change of reservations.

In view of the foregoing, the propriety of the expenditure of Kshs.1,927,190.00 could not be confirmed.

Recommendations

- (i) The management of the Embu County Assembly Management should provide supporting documents for Kshs.372,190.00 or recover the amount from the responsible officers.
- (ii) The wasteful expenditure of Kshs.306,800.00 be recovered from the responsible officers.
- (iii) Management to be held responsible for taking 19 persons to Mombasa for meeting at a cost of Kshs.961,190.

4.2. Other Domestic Travel expenses

Examination of the Assembly's records revealed that Kshs.11,040,179.00 (**Appendix III**) was paid as per diem and honoraria to MCAs and members of staff committees, while attending various official activities. However, there was no proper reason why conferences and retreats were held in locations outside the county and yet the Assembly had prequalified local hospitality service providers for the year ended 30 June 2015.

Further, the County Assembly paid Kshs.1,276,000.00 vide payment voucher number CAE/AUG14/088 which included transport allowance of Kshs.108,000.00.

The payment was not supported and the basis for paying the transport allowance was not explained.

Recommendations

- (i) The management of Embu County Assembly should provide supporting documents for Kshs.108,000.00 or recover the amount from respective officers.
- (ii) The expenditure of Kshs.11,040,179 on conferences and retreats outside the County of Embu should be justified. Further, Local Service providers should be given a priority while selecting Conference and retreat supplies so as to boost economy of the County.

5. Construction of Office Complex and Specialized Works

The County Assembly of Embu entered into an agreement with the contractor for the construction of an office complex and specialized works on 30 March 2015 at a contract sum of Kshs.325,856,107.00 vide tender committee meeting minute number CATC/040/2014-2015 of 5 March 2015. An internal memo ref. CAE/GEN/5/VOL. V/19 of 7 January 2015 revealed that the project was to be financed through development budget as follows:

<u>Year</u>	Amount (Kshs)
2014/2015	35,000,000.00
2015/2016	200,000,000.00
2016/2017	100,000,000.00
Total	335,000,000.00

However, the Commission on Revenue Allocation (CRA) vide a circular no. 5/2015 of 19 May 2015 advised that construction of new county assemblies were part of non-core capital projects that were not a priority in the first five (5) years of devolution and should not be financed through equitable allocation.

It also advised that in case such projects were justified they should be funded using long term finance of between 5 to 10 years in consultation with CRA and the National Treasury. As at 30 June 2015, Kshs. 106,134.00 had been paid to NEMA in respect to the project. However, it was not clear how the County Assembly was going to raise the funds for completing the project since in the absence of the funds, and when a valid contract is in force, the County Assembly might face penalties and claims for breach of contract.

Although the project had been handed over to the contractor on 23 June 2015 as per site meeting minutes of 23 June 2015, the project had stalled and no work was going on at the time of this audit. These was due to conservatory orders issued by High Court of Kenya at Embu on 12 August 2015 restraining the funding, paying out or in any way making available monies to any person for the project pending inter parties hearing. Subsequently, the project manager issued a temporary stoppage instruction to the contractor with effect from 14 August 2015. The progress of the project is further impeded by legal processes and the Assembly has no clear financing plan for the construction of the Office complex.

Recommendations

- (i) The Assembly should seek ways of funding the project as per the CRA circular guidelines, as soon as the court lifts the conservatory orders.
- (ii) The Assembly officers who ignored CRA advise to be held accountable for the liquidated damages that may ensue from the contract.

6. Late Payment of Statutory Deductions

During the year under review the County Assembly was billed by Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA) Kshs.13,242,687.22 made up of Kshs.8,275,989.50, Kshs.3,990,590.92 and 976,106.81 for unremitted taxes, penalties and interest respectively as shown below:-

DESCRIPTION	UNREMITTED TAXES KSHS	PENALTY KSHS	INTEREST KSHS	TOTAL KSHS
Late Payment	9	1,965,579.50	309,057.95	2,274,637.45
Unremitted PAYE	6,591,815.00	1,647,953.75	460,269.58	8,700,038.33
Fringe Benefit	1,390,934.64	347,733.68	143,580.34	1,882,248.66
Withholding Tax	293,239.86	29,323.99	63,198.94	385,762.79
Total	8,275,989.50	3,990,590.92	976,106.81	13,242,687.23

No explanation was provided why the County Assembly failed to remit all taxes to KRA as required by income tax act.

Recommendations

- (i) The County Assembly to surcharge the officer responsible for the Kshs.4,966,697.73 voidable expenditure.
- (ii) In future, the management of the County Assembly to ensure taxes are paid on time to avoid nugatory expenditure.

7. Un Analyzed Legal Fees

During the year under review, the County Assembly paid one law firm as follows:-

Date	PV/No.	CHQ/No.	Amount (Kshs)
02/10/2014	CAE/OCT 14/01	1185	200,000.00
03/10/2014	CAE/OCT 14/027	1316, 1317, 1318	2,000,000.00
06/10/2014	CAE/OCT 14/039	1327	300,000.00
24/10/2014	CAE/OCT 14/056	1379	4,000,000.00
15/01/2015	CAE/JAN 14/056	1604	1,000,000.00
Total			7,500,000.00

In all the fee notes, the amount was charged as a block figure though there was an indication that the legal fees was charged under Schedule V(II)(1)(2) & (3) of Advocates (Remuneration) Order, 2006, the breakdown in terms of court attendance expenses and the basis for the fee notes was not provided.

In view of the foregoing, the propriety of the legal fees expenditure of Kshs.7,500,000 could not be confirmed as at June 2015.

Recommendation

The breakdown and basis of the legal fees to be provided for review and any unsupported amount to be recovered from the responsible officers.

8. Recruitment of Ward Staff

During the financial year under review the Assembly employed seventy two (72) ward employees (**Appendix IV**) on contractual basis. However, the following irregularities were noted.

8.1. Application Letters

Examination of the advertisement revealed that the application letters were to be addressed to the Clerk of Embu County Assembly and submitted not later than 15 December 2014.

However, of some of the application letters reviewed revealed that they were submitted long after the deadline and were addressed to the MCAs instead of the clerk. Therefore it was not clear how individuals who applied long after the set deadline were shortlisted, interviewed, selected and why the letters were addressed to the MCAs instead of the Clerk to the County Assembly.

8.2. Non Provision of Recruitment Records

The Assembly did not provide the following records in respect to the newly recruited employees.

- (i) Application letters for all applicants
- (ii) Minutes of short list showing how the candidates were short listed
- (iii) List of shortlisted applicants
- (iv) Interview records
- (v) Scores of people interviewed
- (vi) Minutes with the basis/reason for selecting the employees

In the circumstances, it was not possible to determine if the recruitment was competitive as required by Section 24. (1) of the Public Service Commission's Regulations 2012 and Section E.6 and E.7 (1) of the Code of Regulations.

Recommendations

- (i) The Assembly to recruit staff on set criteria and maintain relevant documents for all recruitment exercises.
- (ii) The Assembly to comply with all recommended human resources regulations and procedures to ensure procurement of the right people for the right jobs.
- (iii) The County Assembly Management to be held responsible for the recruitment of persons not capable of fulfilling their mandate.

9. Incomplete Fixed Assets Register

The County Assembly did not maintain an up to date fixed assets register during the period under review. The register availed for audit review did not have details such as asset's description, location, date of purchase or valuation, name of supplier, mode of financing, serial number, condition of the asset, date of disposal, disposal amount and

other relevant information pertaining to the assets. Even though, the Assembly has embarked on the process of tagging her assets, no explanation was given for failure to maintain an up to date fixed assets register.

Recommendation

An updated fixed assets register should be prepared as a matter of urgency so as to account for all the Assembly assets.

10. IT Environment

During the year under review, the financial operations of the County Assembly was undertaken through manual vote books and cash books as the Integrated Financial Management Information System (IFMIS) had not been adopted. This was contrary to Clause 8 (2) of the County Government Public Finance Management Transition Act, 2013 which required the adoption of the financial management systems developed by the National Treasury.

The explanation given for failure to adopt IFMIS in the operations of the County Assembly was not sufficient because all entities were to implement IFMIS as per Public Finance Management (PFM) Act, 2012 and County Government Public Finance Management Transition Act, 2013.

Recommendations

- (i) The County Assembly management should liaise with the IFMIS department of the National Treasury to have the IFMIS and G-Pay Systems connectivity established for effective service delivery.
- (ii) The County Assembly to train staff on IFMIS operations
- (iii) The County Assembly to have an IT Strategic Plan, Steering Committee, and Disaster Recovery Plan to enhance data integrity.

11. Unsupported Ward Operations Expenditure

During the financial year under review, the Assembly paid Kshs.5,559,686.00 as reimbursements of standing imprest toward ward operations as follows:-

Date	PV. No	Chq. No	Supplier/Payee	Amount	Description
10-Jun-15	CAE/JUNE15/059	1984 and 1985	Nancy Muthoni Njue	220,000.00	Kyeni North Ward Office Operations Expenses reimbursement
10-Jun-15	CAE/JUNE15/059	1984 and 1985	Nancy Muthoni Njue	100,000.00	Kirimari Ward Office Operations Expenses reimbursement
10-Jun-15	CAE/JUNE15/060	1984 and 1985	Nancy Muthoni Njue	180,000.00	Mbeti North Ward offices Expenses reimbursement
25-May-15	CAE/MAY15/27	1893	Nancy Muthoni Njue	60,000.00	Kyeni North-Ward operations – Part payments
25-May-15	CAE/MAY15/28	1893	Nancy Muthoni Njue	60,000.00	Kirimari North-Ward operations – Part payment
25-May-15	CAE/MAY15/29	1893	Nancy Muthoni Njue	60,000.00	Mbeti North Ward-Ward operations – Part payment
1-Apr-15	CAE/APR15/18 to 36	1870 to 1879	Moses Mbauni	4,879,686.00	General office operations
			Total	5,559,686.00	

However, a cash book with details of all receipts, expenditure and cash balance on hand as required by Section 5.6.9 of the Government Financial Regulation and Procedures was not provided for audit review.

Recommendations

The management of Embu County Assembly should:

- (i) Ensure all payments are examined and authorised appropriately.
- (ii) Maintain imprest register and ensure all imprest issued are done vide imprest warrants.
- (iii) Maintain up to date cash books for all cash payments.
- (iv) The County Assembly be held responsible for the payment of unsupported expenditure of Kshs.5,559.686.

Conclusion

Due to the aforementioned irregularities and non-compliances, the systems formulated and applied by the Embu County Assembly were not reliable for the effective and efficient management of the Public resources and thus a likelihood of poor service delivery to the residents.

The County Assembly should enhance its internal control systems to address the weakness noted in the report to enhance its service delivery.

FCPA Edward R. O. Ouko, CBS AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

29 August 2016